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1 DISCLAIMER 

This information memorandum is to introduce the subject matter and provide a general 

idea and information on the said matter. Although, the material included in this document 

is based on data/information gathered from various reliable sources; however, it is based 

upon certain assumptions, which may differ from case to case. The information has been 

provided on as is where is basis without any warranties or assertions as to the correctness 

or soundness thereof. Although, due care and diligence has been taken to compile this 

document, the contained information may vary due to any change in any of the concerned 

factors, and the actual results may differ substantially from the presented information. 

SMEDA, its employees or agents do not assume any liability for any financial or other loss 

resulting from this memorandum in consequence of undertaking this activity. The 

contained information does not preclude any further professional advice. The prospective 

user of this memorandum is encouraged to carry out additional diligence and gather any 

information which is necessary for making an informed decision; including taking 

professional advice from a qualified consultant/technical expert before taking any decision 

to act upon the information. 

For more information on services offered by SMEDA, please contact our website: 

www.smeda.org.pk 

 

Document Control 

 

Document No. PREF-NO 

Revision No.1 

Prepared by SMEDA-Balochistan 

Revision Date JUNE,2022 

For information  shakoor@smeda.org 

http://www.smeda.org.pk/
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2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Roof is a very important part of any construction unit and it comes in different shapes and 

sizes. There are a wide variety of roofing materials available and being used in 

construction today with a range of advantages and disadvantages. The choice of roof 

selected is dependent upon number of factors, including the location, climate, desired look, 

maintenance and cost that one is willing to bear. In addition the easy/simple installation of 

the roofs and the durability of the roofing material are also very important considerations. 

 

In addition to reinforced concrete roof, other more economic roofing materials include 

metal sheets, wood, clay and tiles etc. Roofing tiles are one of the most preferred 

construction materials for low cost housing and commercial constructions (warehouses, 

factories etc.). These tiles can be made of clay brick (e.g., clay fired at a high temperature) 

or fabricated from concrete.  

 

The proposed project is related to the production of pre-fabricated concrete roofing tiles. 

The tiles can be designed in a way to achieve high performance in wide range of roof 

requirements such as converting flat roofs to pitched roofs, construction of housing, 

community centers, warehouses and factories etc. It is also suitable for roofing of schools 

and other public buildings especially in the rural areas.  

 

The lightweight roofing tiles manufacturing unit will fulfill the local housing construction 

demand of tiles of different sizes and strengths depending upon the individual 

requirements of the customer. Roofing tiles used in Balochistan are generally available in 

12”x12” however; given the customer demand tiles of different specification can also be 

manufactured. 

 

Light Weight Tiles Manufacturing Unit is proposed to be located at any industrial zone 

throughout Pakistan adjacent to metro-Politian cities with higher population density and 

higher concentration of construction work going on in the area for instance the same 

production plant may developed in all those cities which provide the basic raw material for 

the project. The entrepreneur will have market access to two countries e.g. Pakistan and 

Afghanistan. 

The finished Product would include light Weight 12’’x12’’ Tiles. 

The installed manufacturing unit would have the Capacity to produce 288,000 Units of the 

product and will initially operate at 70% capacity utilization. 

 

Total Cost Estimates is Rs.4, 310,257 with fixed investment Rs.3, 654,892 and working 

capital Rs.6, 55,365. 



Pre-Feasibility Study                                                                  Light Weight Roof Tiles Manufacturing Unit 
 

 

JUNE 2022                           

5 

Given the cost assumptions IRR and payback are 37% and 3.90 years respectively 

The most critical considerations or factors for success of the project are: 

• The product should be produced in accordance with International standards and 

quality 

• Location of the unit would play vital role in this projects success. 

• Procurement of raw material from trusted suppliers and below market rates.  

• Human resource would play vital role in manufacturing therefore well trained staff 

will be required to run the project successfully. 

• Market research should be done to identify market gaps moreover most recent trends 

may be identified and product may be reshaped in accordance to demand. 

• Availability of water and electricity should be ensured. 

 

3 INTRODUCTION TO SMEDA 

The Small and Medium Enterprises Development Authority (SMEDA) was established in 

October 1998 with an objective to provide fresh impetus to the economy through 

development of Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs).  

With a mission "to assist in employment generation and value addition to the national 

income, through development of the SME sector, by helping increase the number, scale 

and competitiveness of SMEs", SMEDA has carried out ‘sectoral research’ to identify 

policy, access to finance, business development services, strategic initiatives and 

institutional collaboration and networking initiatives.  

Preparation and dissemination of prefeasibility studies in key areas of investment has been 

a successful hallmark of SME facilitation by SMEDA.  

Concurrent to the prefeasibility studies, a broad spectrum of business development services 

is also offered to the SMEs by SMEDA. These services include identification of experts 

and consultants and delivery of need based capacity building programs of different types in 

addition to business guidance through help desk services. 

 

4 PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT 

The objective of the pre-feasibility study is primarily to facilitate potential entrepreneurs in 

project identification for investment. The project pre-feasibility may form the basis of an 

important investment decision and in order to serve this objective, the document/study 

covers various aspects of project concept development, start-up, and production, 

marketing, finance and business management.   



Pre-Feasibility Study                                                                  Light Weight Roof Tiles Manufacturing Unit 
 

 

JUNE 2022                           

6 

The purpose of this document is to facilitate potential investors in Light Weight Tiles 

Manufacturing Unit by providing them with a general understanding of the business with 

the intention of supporting potential investors in crucial investment decisions. 

The need to come up with pre-feasibility reports for undocumented or minimally 

documented sectors attains greater imminence as the research that precedes such reports 

reveal certain thumb rules; best practices developed by existing enterprises by trial and 

error, and certain industrial norms that become a guiding source regarding various aspects 

of business set-up and it’s successful management. 

Apart from carefully studying the whole document one must consider critical aspects 

provided later on, which form basis of any Investment Decision. 

  

5 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT & PRODUCT 

Following key parameters must be addressed as per pre-feasibility study under preparation  

• Technology: The proposed manufacturing unit is likely to be equipped with modern 

equipment. 

• Location: The production unit is proposed to be located in Quetta which would 

provide investor market access to two countries however it may also be located 

adjacent to metro-Politian cities likewise Karachi, Lahore and location where 

population density is high and more of construction work is going on for instance an 

ideal location could be Hub Chowki which is adjacent to Karachi and more likely to 

give competitive edge to the entrepreneur. 

• Product: The unit would produce 12’’-12’’ light weight roof tiles however the 

product may be modified further by adding some mould to the production unit 

considering change in demand.  

• Target Market: In addition to local markets in Karachi, Lahore, Quetta and 

Islamabad an enormous export market for the Pakistani products exists in Afghanistan. 

• Employment Generation: The proposed project will provide employment opportunity 

to 5 people. Financial analysis shows the unit would be profitable from the very first 

year of operation. 
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6 PRODUCTION PROCESS FLOW  

The roofing tiles that are made of cement, sand, gravel mixture which are reinforced with 

steel wires. The tiles are made in wooden or steel frame, which is placed on an oiled 

smooth surface. After half-filling the mold with cement sand mixture, five to twelve iron 

wires are placed in crisscrossed manner. Then the remaining mold is filled up with the 

mixture. The tiles are left to set down in the mold for one day and after removing from 

mold they are placed in water for further two days. After removing from water they are left 

to cure for seven days before they are used in construction. 

 

 
 

The following steps describe the production of lightweight roofing tiles in detail. 

 

1. Ordering and stockpiling of Raw Material. 

Raw material required for the production of lightweight roofing tiles i.e. sand, cement, iron 

wires and gravel will be ordered and stored as per the production requirement. It is 

recommended to store raw materials for one week’s production requirements for efficient 

running of project and orders fulfillment on time. 

 

2. Mixing. 

Light weight roofing tile production begins by mixing aggregates. Sand is pre-washed to 

remove dirt contaminants. When aggregate are mixed thoroughly water is added to the 

mixture. In the local roof tile industry the mixing is performed manually however for 

higher production requirements aggregate mixer machine may also be used. 

 

3. Molding. 

Process Flow Chart 

Step 1: Ordering and Stockpiling of Raw Material. 

Step 3: DE-molding and Setting (Day 2-10). 

Step 4: Storage and Distribution. 

Step 3: Molding (Day 1). 

Step 2: Mixing of Raw Material (Day 1). 
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The mold is lubricated with a thin layer of motor oil and kerosene mixture. It allows the 

tile to be easily removed from the mold after setting. The lubrication is applied by using 

paint brush. The lubrication is done by used motor oil purchased from motor workshops. 

After lubrication the mold is half filled with aggregate mixture. At this point metal wires 

are placed on the aggregate in a crisscross manner. Six to twelve wires are used depending 

upon the requirement of the customer. The diameter of wire also varies. After adding the 

wires the mold is completely filled with aggregate, 

When the molds are full, the concrete is compacted and the upper surface is made smooth 

by using masonry tools. The size and design of the mold determines the size and design of 

the finished tile. 

 

4. Making of reinforced profiles 

The mold containing the wet concrete tile is moved to setting area. Initially, small amount 

of water is applied to keep the tiles wet. After about one day the tiles are removed from the 

mold and moved to a water tank where they are kept immersed in water for further two 

days. 

After being removed from the water tank the tiles are kept in ambient temperature for 

another seven days to become firm. 

 

5. Storage and distribution. 

The tiles do not require specific storage requirements; they are normally stored in open air. 

The tiles are inspected for defects before they are sent for shipment. 

6.1 Installed And Operational Capacities 

The proposed production unit is set to operate at 70% at capacity utilization initially and 

shall increase its production by 5% yearly. 

 

The proposed manufacturing plant has the ability to produce 288,000 units of light weight 

roof tiles per year. The proposed plant is set to operate for 8 hours per day however 

production can be increased if needed. 

 

7 CRITICAL FACTORS 

• Trained and specialized human resource should be hired which would play vital role in 

project’s success. 

• Continuous efforts should be made to upgrade technology. 

• Price may be adjusted in accordance to the segment targeted moreover price would 

play vital role in success of the project. 

• Purchase of raw material from trusted suppliers and below market prices would play a 

vital role in projects success and may provide competitive advantage over competitors  
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• Location of the unit would play a vital role in projects success. 

• In future the products may enhanced or modified in accordance to market demand 

therefore special attention should be paid to market developments. 

• The product can be reshaped considering market demand; simply by adding some 

molds therefore molds may be researched and bought. 

 

8 GEOGRAPHICAL POTENTIAL FOR INVESTMENT 

Big cities with growing middle income group such as Karachi, Islamabad, Quetta, Lahore, 

Sukkur and Hyderabad are some of the prospective cities for setting up this business. Cities 

like Lahore and Karachi with high population and construction work going on are more 

favorable for this project. 

 

9 POTENTIAL TARGET CUSTOMERS / MARKETS 

Shelter is one of the most basic needs for human beings therefore the demand for homes 

has increased at great pace. The major variables causing increase in demand in homes can 

be stated as increase in population and rapid urbanization. Roof tiles have gain popularity, 

especially with the lower income segment of the population, as of its low cost when 

compared to reinforced concrete roofs. Other advantages of tile include durability 

(compared to wooden/mud roofs), easy installation, easy maintenance and fire safety, as 

they are non-combustible.  

Light weight roofing tiles have a number of uses including public, private, commercial and 

residential projects and it has well-proven market demand making it a good business 

opportunity. 

 

10 PROJECT COST SUMMARY 

10.1 Project Economics 

All the figures in this financial model have been calculated for estimated sales of Rs. 5.796 

million in the year one. The capacity utilization during year one is worked out at 70% with 

5% increase in subsequent years up to the maximum capacity utilization of 95%. 

The following table shows internal rate of return, payback period and net present value of 

the proposed venture. 

Table 1: Project Economics 

Description Details 

 Internal Rate of Return (IRR)  37% 
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 Payback Period (yrs.)  3.90 

Net Present Value (Rs.)         4,987,600  

 

10.2 Project Financing 

 

Following table provides details of the equity required and variables related to bank loan; 

 

Table 2: Project Financing 

Description Details 

Total Equity (70%) Rs. 3,017,180 

Bank Loan (30%) Rs. 1,293,077 

Markup to the Borrower (%age / annum) 20% 

Tenure of the Loan (Years) 10 

 

10.3 Project Cost 

Following fixed and working capital requirements have been identified for operations of 

the proposed business.  

 

Table 3: Project Cost 

Description Amount Rs. 

Capital Cost 

Land 1,044,000 

Building/Infrastructure 1,220,992 

Machinery & equipment               1,175,000 

Furniture & Fixture                     119,900 

Office Equipment                    83,000 

Pre-operating Cost                    12,000 

Total Capital Cost            3,654,892 



Pre-Feasibility Study                                                                  Light Weight Roof Tiles Manufacturing Unit 
 

 

JUNE 2022                           

11 

Working Capital 

Raw Material Inventory               155,365 

Cash                   500,000  

Total Working Capital            655,365 

Total Project Cost            4,310,257 

 

10.4 Space Requirement 

The space requirement for the proposed Light Weight Roof Tiles Manufacturing unit is 

estimated considering various facilities including management office, production hall, 

storage, open space, etc. Details of space requirement and cost related to land & building is 

given below; 

Table 4: Space Requirment 

Description 
Estimated Area 

(Sq.ft) 

Unit Cost (Rs.) Total Cost 

(Rs.) 

Management Office 300 1,000 300,000 

bath tubs 

8L*3B*2.5h=80sqft.(No. of bth 

tubs 2) 

320 

 

800 256,000 

store 256 900 230,400 

Material mixing area 232 650 150,800 

drive way 500 200 100,000 

bathrooms/washrooms 200 900 180,000 

Production area 2,692 - - 

Total 4,500  1,220,992 

10.5 Machinery & Equipment Requirement 

Plant, machinery and equipment for the proposed project are stated below.  
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Table 5: Machinery & Equipment 

Description  Quantity Unit Cost  

(Rs.) 

Total Cost 

(Rs.) 

Molds (1*1)  450 2,500 1,125,000 

Misc. equipment shovels etc. 1 50,000 50,000 

Total   1,175,000 

 

10.6 Furniture & Fixtures Requirement 

Details of the furniture and fixture required for the project are given below; 

Table 6: Furniture & Fixture 

Description  Quantity Unit Cost 

(Rs.) 

Total Cost 

(Rs.) 

Furniture(lump sum) 1 60,000 60,000 

Carpeting 300 33 9,900 

Electric wiring & lighting(lump sum) 1 50,000 50,000 

Total   119,900 

 

10.7 Office Equipment Requirement 

Following office equipment will be required for Light Weight Roof Tiles Manufacturing 

Unit; 

 

Table 7: Office Equipment 

Description  Quantity Unit Cost 

(Rs.) 

Total Cost 

(Rs.) 

Computer With LCD  1 40,000 40,000 

Printer with scanner   1 40,000 40,000 

Telephone set  1 3,000 3,000 

Total   83,000 
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10.8 Human Resource Requirement 

In order to run operations of Light Weight Roof Tiles Manufacturing Unit smoothly, 

details of human resources required along with number of employees and monthly salary 

are recommended as under;  

 

Table 8: Human Resource Requirment 

Description No. of Employees Monthly Salary per 

person (Rs.) 

Supervisor/Mistri 1 28,000 

Labor 3 23,000 

Guard Part Time (Night Shift) Part Time 1 12,000 

Total  05  

 

10.9 other costs 

The promotional expense being essential for marketing of Light Weight Roof Tiles 

Manufacturing Unit is estimated as 1% of revenue expenses which is estimated to be Rs. 

57,960 in first year of operations. 

10.10 Revenue Generation 

Based on the capacity utilization of 70%, respectively, sales revenue during the first year 

of operations is estimated as under;  

 

Table 9: Revenue Generation – Year 1 

Description No. of 

Units 

Produced 

(No.) 

Finished 

Goods 

Inventory 

(No.) 

Units 

available 

for Sale 

(No.) 

Sale Price 

/ unit 

(Rs.) 

Sales 

Revenue 

(Rs.) 

Light weight Roof 

Tiles 1*1 

 

201,600 

 

8,400  

 

193,200 30 5,796,000 

Total     5,796,000 
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11 CONTACT DETAILS 

In order to facilitate potential investors, contact details of private sector Service Providers 

relevant to the proposed project be given. 

11.1 Machinery Suppliers 

 

11.2 Raw Material Suppliers 

Name of Supplier Address Phone 

Mukhtar Cement Agency 
Hazara Qabristan Rd, 

Quetta, Balochistan 87300 

0332 78540923  

Maplleleaf cement 

JINNAH ROAD, near 

HALI ROAD, Model 

Town, Quetta, Balochistan 

87300 

(081) 2825123 

Hanzala Cement & Iron 
Pishin Station, Quetta, 

Balochistan 

(081) 2825123 

 

 

 

 

Name of Supplier Address Phone 

Fine Hardware Store 
Mir Ahmed Khan Rd, Quetta, 

Balochistan 

(081) 2825918 

Abdullah Hardware 

Store 

Corner Essa Khan Road، main 

Sirki Rd, near pioneer school، 

Quetta 

(081) 2451284 

Building Hardware 

Store 

Gizri Rd, Gizri Village Defence 

Housing Authority, Karachi, 

Karachi City, Sindh 75500 

(021) 35821847 

Ahmed Hardware, 

Paint & Sanitary Store 

University Rd, Block 7, 

Gulistan-e-Johar, Karachi, 

Sindh 

0321 2539405 
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12 USEFUL WEB LINKS 

 

Small & Medium Enterprises Development Authority (SMEDA) www.smeda.org.pk  

Government of Pakistan www.pakistan.gov.pk  

Ministry of Industries & Production www.moip.gov.pk 

Ministry of Education, Training & Standards in Higher Education http://moptt.gov.pk 

Government of Punjab www.punjab.gov.pk 

Government of Sindh www.sindh.gov.pk 

Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa www.khyberpakhtunkhwa.gov.pk 

Government of Balochistan www.balochistan.gov.pk 

Government of Gilgit Baltistan www.gilgitbaltistan.gov.pk 

Government of Azad Jamu Kashmir www.ajk.gov.pk  

Trade Development Authority of Pakistan (TDAP) www.tdap.gov.pk  

Security Commission of Pakistan (SECP) www.secp.gov.pk 

Federation of Pakistan Chambers of Commerce and Industry 

(FPCCI) 

www.fpcci.com.pk 

State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) www.sbp.org.pk 

Punjab Small Industries Corporation www.psic.gop.pk  

Sindh Small Industries Corporation www.ssic.gos.pk  

Pakistan Horticulture Development and Export Company (PHDEC) www.phdec.org.pk  

Punjab Vocational Training Council (PVTC) www.pvtc.gop.pk  

Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority (TEVTA) www.tevta.org  

Pakistan Readymade Garment Technical Training Institute www.prgmea.org/prgtti/  

Livestock & Dairy Development Department, Government of 

Punjab. 

www.livestockpunjab.gov.pk  

Punjab Industrial Estates (PIE) www.pie.com.pk 

Faisalabad Industrial Estate Development and Management 

Company (FIEDMC)  

www.fiedmc.com.pk  

 
 

 

http://www.smeda.org.pk/
http://www.pakistan.gov.pk/
http://www.moip.gov.pk/
http://moptt.gov.pk/
http://www.punjab.gov.pk/
http://www.sindh.gov.pk/
http://www.khyberpakhtunkhwa.gov.pk/
http://www.balochistan.gov.pk/
http://www.gilgitbaltistan.gov.pk/
http://www.ajk.gov.pk/
http://www.tdap.gov.pk/
http://www.secp.gov.pk/
http://www.fpcci.com.pk/
http://www.sbp.org.pk/
http://www.psic.gop.pk/
http://www.ssic.gos.pk/
http://www.phdec.org.pk/
http://www.pvtc.gop.pk/
http://www.tevta.org/
http://www.prgmea.org/prgtti/
http://www.livestockpunjab.gov.pk/
http://www.pie.com.pk/
http://www.fiedmc.com.pk/
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13 ANNEXURES 

13.1 Income Statement 
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13.2 Balance Sheet 
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13.3 Cash Flow Statement 
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14 KEY ASSUMPTIONS 

14.1 Operating Cost Assumptions 

Description Details 

Operational days per year 330 

Operational hours per day 8 

Shifts per day 1 

 

14.2 Production Cost Assumptions 

Description Details 

Production capacity utilization in year 1 70% 

Production capacity growth rate 5% 

Maximum capacity utilization 95% 

 

14.3 Revenue Assumptions 

Description Details 

Production Units                 288,000 

Sale price per unit 30 

COGs 19.30 

 

14.4 Financial Assumptions 

Description Details 

Interest rate 20% 

Debt : Equity Ratio 30:70 

Project Life (Years) 10 
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REGIONAL OFFICE 

PUNJAB 
REGIONAL OFFICE 

SINDH 
REGIONAL OFFICE  
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REGIONAL OFFICE 

BALOCHISTAN 
 

3rd Floor, Building No. 3,  

Aiwan-e-Iqbal Complex, 
Egerton Road Lahore, 

Tel: (042) 111-111-456 

Fax: (042) 36304926-7 
helpdesk.punjab@smeda.org.pk 

5TH Floor, Bahria 

Complex II, M.T. Khan Road, 

Karachi. 

Tel: (021) 111-111-456 
Fax: (021) 5610572 

helpdesk-khi@smeda.org.pk 

Ground Floor 

State Life Building 

The Mall, Peshawar. 

Tel: (091) 9213046-47 
Fax: (091) 286908 

helpdesk-pew@smeda.org.pk 

Bungalow No. 15-A 

Chaman Housing Scheme 

Airport Road, Quetta. 

Tel: (081) 831623, 831702 
Fax: (081) 831922 

helpdesk-qta@smeda.org.pk 

 

http://www.smeda.org.pk/
mailto:helpdesk@smeda.org.pk

